
 

 

 

 
Meeting: Democracy and Standards Committee 

Date: Monday 20th November, 2023 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Venue: The Council Chamber, Corby Cube, George Street, Corby, Northants, 
NN17 1AG 

 
To members of the Democracy and Standards Committee: 
 
Councillor Andy Mercer (Chair), Councillor Ian Jelley (Vice-Chair), Councillor Jean 
Addison, Councillor Wendy Brackenbury, Councillor Robin Carter, Councillor Melanie 
Coleman, Councillor Emily Fedorowycz, Councillor Kirk Harrison, Councillor Matt Keane, 
Councillor Graham Lawman, Councillor Paul Marks, Councillor Dorothy Maxwell and 
Councillor Michael Tye 
 
(Substitutes:  Cllrs Allebone, Armour, Bell, Lyn Buckingham, M Dearing, D Dell, Ekins, 
Irwin, Pandey, Powell, Smith-Haynes, Smyth and Watt). 
 

Agenda 
 

Item Subject Presenting 
Officer 

Page no. 
 
01   Apologies for absence 

 
  

 
02   Members' declarations of interest (if any) 

 
  

 
03   Approval of the minutes of the additional meeting 

held on 25 September 2023 
 5 - 8 

 
Item for discussion  

04   Polling District and Polling Places Review 2023 - 
Final Recommendations 
 

Heather 
Jackson 

9 - 40 

 
05   Close of meeting 

 
  

 
Adele Wylie, Monitoring Officer 

North Northamptonshire Council 

 
Proper Officer 

Friday 10 November 2023 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

This agenda has been published by Democratic Services. 
Committee Administrator: Carol Mundy 
01933 231 521 
Carol.Mundy@northnorthants.gov.uk 
 
Meetings at the Council Offices 
Where there is a need for the Council to discuss exempt or confidential business, the press 
and public will be excluded from those parts of the meeting only and will have to vacate the 
room for the duration of that business. 
 
Public Participation 
The council has approved procedures for you to request to address meetings of the 
committee.  
 
Press & Media Enquiries 
Any press or media enquiries should be directed through the Council’s Communications 
Team to NNU-Comms-Team@northnorthants.gov.uk 
 
Public Enquiries 
Public enquiries regarding the authority’s meetings can be made to 
democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk 
 
 
ITEM NARRATIVE DEADLINE 
Members of 
the public 
agenda 
statements 
and Member 
agenda 
statements 

Requests to address the committee from the public must be received by 
5pm two clear working days before the meeting.  Speakers will be limited 
to speak for three minutes. 
 
Requests from a ward councillor must also be received two clear working 
days before the meeting.  A member will be limited to speak for five 
minutes. 
 

5pm  
Wednesday 15  
November 2023  

 
If you wish to register to speak, please contact the committee administrator 
 

Page 2

mailto:democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk


 

Members’ Declarations of Interest 
 
Members are reminded of their duty to ensure they abide by the approved Member Code 
of Conduct whilst undertaking their role as a Councillor.  Where a matter arises at a 
meeting which relates to a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, you must declare the interest, 
not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room 
unless granted a dispensation. 
 
Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to other Registerable Interests, you 
must declare the interest.  You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are 
also allowed to speak at the meeting but must not take part in any vote on the matter 
unless you have been granted a dispensation. 
 
Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to your own financial interest (and is not 
a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest) or relates to a financial interest of a relative, friend or 
close associate, you must disclose the interest and not vote on the matter unless granted 
a dispensation.  You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also 
allowed to speak at the meeting. 
 
Members are reminded that they should continue to adhere to the Council’s approved 
rules and protocols during the conduct of meetings.  These are contained in the Council’s 
approved Constitution. 
 
If Members have any queries as to whether a Declaration of Interest should be made 
please contact the Monitoring Officer at –  monitoringofficer@northnorthants.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 3

mailto:monitoringofficer@northnorthants.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Democracy and Standards Committee (Additional meeting) 
Minutes of the meeting held at 7pm on Monday 25th September, 2023 
at the Council Chamber, Corby Cube, George Street, Corby, Northants, NN17 1QG. 
 
Present: - 
Members: 
Councillor Andy Mercer (Chair) Councillor Ian Jelley 
Councillor Jean Addison 
Councillor Wendy Brackenbury 
Councillor Robin Carter 
Councillor Melanie Coleman 
Councillor Emily Fedorowycz 
 

Councillor Kirk Harrison 
Councillor Matt Keane 
Councillor Paul Marks 
Councillor Dorothy Maxwell 
Councillor Michael Tye 
 

Officers: 
Adele Wylie, Director of Customer and Governance  
Heather Jackson, Head of Electoral Services 
Carol Mundy, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Committees/Members) 
Emma Robinson, Democratic Services Assistant.  
 
The Chair welcomed members and the viewing public to the meeting. 
 

66 Apologies for absence  
 
Resolved to note an apology for absence was received from Councillor G Lawman.  
  

67 Members' Declarations of Interest  
 
The chair invited those members, who wished to do so, to make any declarations of 
interest.  
  
Resolved to note that no declarations were made.  
 

68 Minutes from the meeting held on 6 June 2023  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 6 June 2023 were received.  
  
Resolved that the minutes of the meeting of 6 June 2023 be approved and signed as 
an accurate record of the meeting.  
 

69 Polling District and Polling Place Review 2023  
 
The joint report of the Executive Director of Customer & Governance, Mrs Wylie and 
Head of Electoral Services, Miss Jackson was received to seek approval to the plans 
for the commencement of a statutory review of polling districts and polling places. 
  
Mrs Wylie, in her capacity as returning officer, presented the report to the committee 
and explained that a statutory review of polling districts and polling places had to be 
carried out once every five years. The proposal, as detailed in the timetable at 5.4 of 
the report, was to commence the review on Monday 2 October 2023 with conclusion 

Public Document Pack

Page 1Page 5

Agenda Item 3



by 30 November 2023, thus enabling relevant changes to be made to the electoral 
register in readiness for its publication on 1 December 2023. 
  
The report also detailed alternative options, which if chosen, would result in the 
electoral register being published twice within a short period and would also result in 
resource implications, with the potential to cause confusion in the lead up to the 
Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner elections on 2 May 2024.  
 
Details of the methods of consultation were provided in the report.  
  
Members asked what the response rate to such consultation would normally be. Miss 
Jackson responded to say that responses were not high, and there were many ways 
in which responses could be made, including through social media, publications, 
discussion with local groups, particularly around disabled access, and other 
stakeholders. Whilst the review could be carried out by merely putting out a Notice, 
the council was keen to engage with the public and highlight the work undertaken by 
the Elections team.  
  
Reference was also made to the electoral register and the work that was undertaken 
to ensure its accuracy. Miss Jackson explained that the annual canvass takes place in 
late Summer each year and that visiting officers attend at premises to seek 
information from those living there to ensure they are added to the register.  There 
was also ongoing work with checking records and details to ensure that the register 
was as accurate as possible.  
  
Questions regarding voter ID were also raised.  It was explained that there were many 
different forms of ID that could be used, and work was ongoing with communities, 
including a nationwide advertising campaign and more local information being 
available. Poll cards would also remind electors to ensure that a photo ID was taken to 
the polling station.  Those without photo ID could apply for a Voter Authority Certificate 
and this information would also be on the Poll Card.   
  
The chair proposed that the recommendations as detailed at 3.1 to 3.5 of the report, 
be approved and this was seconded by Councillor Marks and on being put to the vote 
declared carried.  
   
Resolved that: 
  

(i)              the commencement of the compulsory polling district and places review on 
Monday 2 October 2023 be approved; 

(ii)             the outline timetable detailed at 5.4 of the report be approved; 
(iii)           the Electoral Registration Officer be authorised to take the necessary 

measures to give effect to parliamentary constituency changes, ensuring 
that the register reflects existing and new constituencies, until the 
boundaries are fully in force.  

(iv)           the Electoral Registration Officer be authorised to take the necessary 
measures to give effect to any new or amended polling districts on 
completion of the polling district review, ensuring the register reflects 
existing and new boundaries, until the boundaries are fully in force.  

(v)             Delegated power be given to the Executive Director of Customer & 
Governance, to designate polling places in accordance with section 18 and 
18B of the Representation of the People Act 1983, such power to be 
exercised in circumstances where a decision is required at short notice and 

Page 2Page 6



it is not possible to await a decision of the Democracy & Standards 
Committee.  

 
70 Elections - Scale of Fees and Charges  

 
The circulated joint report of the Executive Director of Customer & Governance, Mrs 
Wylie and Head of Electoral Services, Miss Jackson was received to note the changes 
to the scale of election fees for local government elections in North Northamptonshire.  
  
Appended to the report were the original fees, along with the revised scale of fees and 
charges.  
  
Mrs Wylie presented the report and clarified that the revised fees would ensure that 
staff were adequately remunerated to reflect additional responsibilities and that fees 
were in line with the National Living Wage and sufficiently attractive to encourage staff 
to undertake election duties. Consultation with West Northamptonshire had also been 
undertaken to ensure that we would not loose staff to a neighbouring district because 
they were potentially paying more.  
  
Members asked if town and parish councils would contribute to the election fees, 
within their own area.  Mrs Wylie confirmed that this had been the case across North 
Northamptonshire for some time and that town and parish councils in the Kettering 
area would be asked to do so in future. 
  
It was proposed by Councillor Mercer that the revised fees and charges be noted, this 
was seconded by Councillor Marks and on being put to the vote declared carried.   
  
Resolved that the revised scale of election fees and charges for local government 
elections within North Northamptonshire, as detailed at appendix 2, be noted.  
 

71 Close of meeting  
 
There being no further business the chair closed the meeting at 7.27pm. 
  
  
  

Chairman…………………………………… 
  

Date…………………………………………… 

Page 3Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

 
Democracy and Standards Committee 

 Monday 20th November  2023 
 

 
 

 
List of Appendices 
Appendix A- Acting Returning Officer recommendations 
Appendix B- Details of new polling districts and the future parliamentary 
constituencies as they relate to each polling district  
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To update members on the response to the polling district and polling place review 

consultation and to seek approval for the Executive Director of Customer and 
Governance to make a Polling Place Order which sets out the allocated polling 
place for each polling district. 
 
 

 
2. Executive Summary 
 
2.1 The polling district and polling place review commenced on 2nd October 2023.  

The consultation period was open until 30th October 2023.  The report 
summarises the outcome of the consultation process undertaken as part of the 
review including the recommendations of the Acting Returning Officer. 

Report Title 
 

Polling District and Polling Places Review 2023 – Final 
Recommendations 
 

Report Author SRO Adele Wylie – Executive Director of Customer & 
Governance (adele.wylie@northnorthants.gov.uk) 
 
Report Author - Heather Jackson – Head of Electoral 
Services (heather.jackson@northnorthans.gov.uk) 

Are there public sector equality duty implications?  ☐ Yes    ☒ No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information 
(whether in appendices or not)? 

☐ Yes    ☒ No 

Applicable paragraph number/s for exemption from 
publication under Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

mailto:adele.wylie@northnorthants.gov.uk


2.2 The responses to the consultation are published on the North Northamptonshire 
Council website  

2.3 The Acting Returning Officer’s report is published on the North Northamptonshire 
Council website at:. 

 
3. Recommendations 
 

It is recommended that the Democracy and Standards Committee 

 
3.1 Considers the content of the consultation responses published at 

https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/elections-and-voting/polling-district-and-
polling-place-review/have-your-say-pdppr 
 
 

3.2 Considers the Acting Returning Officer report published at 
https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/elections-and-voting/polling-district-and-
polling-place-review/have-your-say-pdppr 
 

 
3.3 Considers the Acting Returning Officer recommendations detailed at 

Appendix A and approves the ongoing monitoring of polling districts and 
polling places to enable updates to be made to the arrangements where 
necessary to reflect community identity, accessibility and convenience for 
voters. 

 
3.4 The Executive Director of Customer and Governance be authorised to 

make a Polling Places Order by 30th November 2023 in accordance with 
the recommendations at Appendix A. 

 
3.5 Authorises the Executive Director of Customer and Governance to make 

changes to the above-mentioned Polling Places Order in the event that a 
polling district or place needs to be changed at short notice and there is 
insufficient time for the change to be considered by Democracy and 
Standards Committee. 

 
3.6 Notes that the Register of Electors will be published on 1st December 2023 

incorporating details of new polling districts where necessary and the future 
parliamentary constituencies as they relate to each polling district as 
detailed at Appendix B. 

 

3.7 Reason for Recommendations 
• To enable the statutory review to be completed in accordance with 

legislation. 

Page 10

https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/elections-and-voting/polling-district-and-polling-place-review/have-your-say-pdppr
https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/elections-and-voting/polling-district-and-polling-place-review/have-your-say-pdppr
https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/elections-and-voting/polling-district-and-polling-place-review/have-your-say-pdppr
https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/elections-and-voting/polling-district-and-polling-place-review/have-your-say-pdppr


• To enable the Register of Electors to be updated to take account of 
future Parliamentary constituency boundaries and other changes to 
electoral arrangements. 

• To enable updates to polling districts and polling places to ensure 
voting arrangements remain current and reflect future housing 
development and changes in the size of the electorate. 

• To ensure that polling places remain suitable and accessible taking 
account of the requirements of the Elections Act 2022. 

• To enable polling places to be designated at short notice only in 
the event that an existing polling place is no longer available due to 
an unanticipated event, unforeseen circumstances, or emergency. 

  

4 Report Background 
 

4.1 The review timetable that was agreed at a meeting of Democracy and 
Standards Committee on 25th September 2023 was as follows: 

Review of polling districts and places 2023 
Preparatory work started 1st August 2023 
Resolution from Democracy and 
Standards committee providing for 
commencement of review 

25th September 2023 

Notice of review published Monday 2nd October 2023 
Commencement of formal 
consultation  

Monday 2nd October 2023 

End of formal consultation Monday 30th October 2023 
Consider responses  By 3rd November 2023  
Final proposals published via 
meeting agenda papers and website 

10th November 2023 

Democracy and Standards 
Committee meeting 

20th November 2023 

Conclude review By end November 2023 
Publish electoral register (including 
any new or amended polling 
districts) 

1st December 2023 

Scheduled elections on new polling 
districts, places and stations scheme 

2 May 2024 

3.8 Alternative Options Considered- This is a statutory review under Section 18C 
of the Representation of the People Act 1983 to be completed between 1st 
October 2023 and 31st January 2025.  Members agreed at a previous 
meeting of the Democracy and Standards Committee on 25th September 
2023 that the review commence on 2nd October and be completed by 30th 
November to enable the Register of Electors to be updated ready for 
republication on 1st December 2023.  Extending the review timetable to 
enable a longer consultation period was considered, however, this would 
have resulted in the register of electors having to be republished twice within 
a two-month period and could cause confusion in the run up to the May 2024 
elections. 

 

Page 11



 

4.2 Under the Representation of the People Act 1983, the council has a duty to 
divide its area into polling districts and to designate a polling place for each 
district. 
 

4.3 The following definitions may be helpful when reading the report. 
• “Polling districts” are geographical electoral areas into which wards 

and constituencies may be sub-divided.  
• “Polling places” are the buildings or areas designated by the council 

where electors in a polling district go to vote in person.  
• “Polling stations” are the number of issuing desks in the building or 

area that is the designated polling place. 
 

4.4 When designating areas as polling districts, each parish must be a separate 
polling district, unless special circumstances apply. 

 
4.5 A polling place must be designated for each polling district, unless the size 

or other circumstances of a polling district are such that the situation of the 
polling stations does not materially affect the convenience of the electors. 

 
4.6 The polling place must be an area in the district, unless special 

circumstances make it desirable to designate an area wholly or partly 
outside the district (for example, if no accessible polling place can be 
identified in the district) 

 
4.7 The formal consultation period began on 2nd October 2023 and respondents 

were able to make representations via the Council’s dedicated consultation 
hub, in writing, by telephone or by email. 

 
4.8 The consultation documents were also made available for inspection at the 

Council Offices, Bowling Green Road, Kettering NN15 7QX 
 

4.9 A total of 93 responses were received via the dedicated engagement hub of 
which 53 were complete responses and 40 were incomplete responses. 
Details of all responses received are available at 
https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/elections-and-voting/polling-district-and-
polling-place-review/have-your-say-pdppr 

 
4.10 Six responses were received via email of which 3 were representations from 

persons with a disability. 
 

4.11 The review was also raised at a meeting of the Local Disability Network 
hosted by West Northamptonshire Council. Comments were invited from the 

Page 12

https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/elections-and-voting/polling-district-and-polling-place-review/have-your-say-pdppr
https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/elections-and-voting/polling-district-and-polling-place-review/have-your-say-pdppr


group’s perspective of their experience (positive or negative) regarding 
polling places in general that they had visited themselves. 

 
4.12 Feedback was generally positive although some concerns were raised 

around parking at some venues and the availability of wheelchair access. In 
some cases, busy, loud venues could be off-putting.  The group provided 
very positive feedback around the equipment for voters in the polling 
stations.  

 
4.13 As required by legislation the (Acting) Returning Officer for each 

constituency situated wholly or partly within the Council area was also 
consulted. The Acting Returning Officer report was made available for 
inspection at the Council Offices, Bowling Green Road, Kettering, NN15 
7QX and on the Council’s website. The recommendations of the ARO for 
each polling district are included at Appendix A. 

 
4.14 The ARO for West Northamptonshire Council was invited to make 

representations in relation to the polling districts and polling places that fall 
within the Daventry constituency.  No representations were received during 
the consultation period. 

 
4.15 In undertaking the review consideration was also given to the amendments 

needed to the Register of Electors to reflect the final recommendations of 
the Boundary Commission for England’s review of constituency boundaries. 

 
4.16 Details of the future constituencies which should be reflected in the Register 

when it is republished on 1st December 2023 are included at Appendix B.      

5 Issues and Choices 
 

5.1 This is a statutory review that must be undertaken during the prescribed 16-
month window, however as noted above, changes to constituency 
boundaries will impact the existing arrangement of polling districts.  It was 
therefore essential to undertake this review at the earliest opportunity. 
   

5.2 The final recommendations of the Local Government Boundary Commission 
in respect of their review of Electoral Arrangements for North 
Northamptonshire may impact the designation of polling districts and polling 
places in the future.  In order to ensure polling districts and polling places 
remain suitable it will be necessary to undertake a further interim review 
during 2024 to ensure suitable arrangements are in place prior to the full 
council elections scheduled for May 2025. 

 

Page 13



Next Steps 

Following agreement from Members 
 

5.3 The Executive Director of Customer and Governance will make a Polling 
Place Order that will detail the allocation of electors within each polling 
district to a designated polling place. 
 

5.4 The register of electors will be updated to reflect changes to polling districts 
including the allocation of streets and properties within polling districts and 
the letter codes that define each area. 
 

5.5 The register of electors will be updated to reflect the future constituency 
boundaries as published in the final recommendations of the Boundary 
Commission for England’s review of constituency boundaries. 

 
5.6 The outcome of the review and reasons for decisions will be published along 

with: 
• all correspondence sent to an (A)RO in connection with the review 
• all correspondence sent to any person whom the authority thinks has 

particular expertise in relation to access to premises or facilities for 
persons who have different forms of disability 

• all representations made by any person in connection with the review 
• the minutes of any meeting held by the council to consider any 

revision to the designation of polling districts or polling places within 
its area as a result of the review 

• details of the designation of polling districts and polling places within 
the local authority area as a result of the review 

• details of the places where the results of the review have been 
published  

 
6 Implications (including financial implications) 
 

6.1 Resources and Financial 
6.1.1 The costs of undertaking the review and preparing and publishing the 

register of electors are already included within the existing 2023/2024 budget 
provision. 

 
6.2 Legal and Governance 

6.2.1 The process for the review is set out in Schedule A1, Electoral 
Administration Act 2006. Failure to follow due process could lead to legal 
challenge and risk damage to the Council’s reputation. 

 
6.3 Relevant Policies and Plans 

Page 14



6.3.1 Designating polling districts based on identifiable communities and utilising 
local venues as polling places facilitates greater participation in the 
democratic process, enabling communities to influence local representation 
and policies that impact them.  It helps to promote community identity, 
contributes to local economic development, and provides opportunities for 
greater sustainability.  

 
6.4 Risk  

6.4.1  There are no significant risks arising from the proposed recommendations in 
this report.  

 
 

7.1     Consultation  
• A designated period of formal consultation was undertaken.  The 

consultation was publicised on the website, via the engagement hub, 
in the Leader’s Update, via internal communications with staff, and on 
social media channels. The documents were made available for 
inspection at the Council Offices, Bowling Green Road, Kettering. In 
addition those with an interest or expertise in disability were invited to 
attend a meeting at which accessibility of polling places was 
discussed and to provide feedback. 

• Easy read versions of a questionnaire were also delivered to Drovers 
Hall.  The responses to these easy read surveys are available in the 
document titled Representations made by other channels which is 
included on the website at 
https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/elections-and-voting/polling-
district-and-polling-place-review/have-your-say-pdppr. 

• The (Acting) Returning Officer prepared a report and 
recommendations. 

 
8.1      Equality Implications 

8.1.1 An Equalities Impact Assessment has been completed and submitted to the 
Equalities Team. Feedback will be sought from the Council’s equality officer 
and from those with a disability or with special expertise in disability matters. 

8.1.2 The review will seek to ensure that all electors in the local authority area 
have such reasonable facilities for voting as are practicable in the 
circumstances and that so far as is reasonable and practicable every polling 
place for which North Northamptonshire Council is responsible is accessible 
to electors who are disabled. 

 
9.1    Climate Impact 

9.1.1  The review is primarily an office based administrative exercise.  Some visits 
will be made to venues within the council area to assess their suitability for 
use as polling stations and their continued accessibility and fitness for voting 
purposes. 

9.1.2 In considering the designation of polling places consideration will be given to 
the proximity of the venue to urban settlements, accessibility via local public 
transport networks, and other routes such as walking and cycling networks.   

Page 15



 
10.1 Community Impact 

10.1.1 When considering the geographical designation of polling districts and the 
allocation of electors to polling places, consideration will be given to the   
identification of communities within natural or other defined boundaries. 

 
11.1  Crime and Disorder Impact 

11.1.1 The process of the review is unlikely to impact crime and disorder in the  
Council area.  

 
12 Background Papers 
 

1. Electoral Commission guidance – Reviews of Polling Districts, Polling Places 
and Polling Stations https://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/reviews-polling-
districts-polling-places-and-polling-stations 

2. North Northamptonshire Council dedicated boundary review webpage 
information: https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/elections-and-
voting/boundary-reviews-and-polling 
 

 

Page 16

https://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/reviews-polling-districts-polling-places-and-polling-stations
https://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/reviews-polling-districts-polling-places-and-polling-stations
https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/elections-and-voting/boundary-reviews-and-polling
https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/elections-and-voting/boundary-reviews-and-polling


APPENDIX A 

 

POLLING DISTRICT AND PLACE REVIEW 2023 

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE ACTING RETURNING OFFICER 

CORBY CONSTITUENCY 

 

Polling Place Ward 
Current 
Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward ARO’s Recommendations  

Corby Old Village 
Community Centre Corby Rural CRA Corby Lloyds 

No changes required 

Cottingham Middleton 
Village Hall Corby Rural CRB Cottingham 

No changes required 

East Carlton Cricket 
Club Corby Rural CRC East Carlton 

No changes required 

Gretton Village Hall Corby Rural CRD Gretton 
No changes required 

The Welcome Centre Corby Rural CRE Little Stanion 
No changes required 

Cottingham Middleton 
Village Hall Corby Rural CRF Middleton No1 

No changes required 

Cottingham Middleton 
Village Hall Corby Rural CRG Middleton No 2 

No changes required 

Rockingham Village Hall Corby Rural CRH Rockingham 
No changes required 

Stanion Village Hall Corby Rural CRI Stanion 
No changes required 

Priors Hall Community 
Centre Corby Rural CRJ Weldon 

Consider creation of additional 
polling district(s) to 
accommodate increased 
electorate from next phases of 
Priors Hall development. 

Weldon Village Hall Corby Rural CRK Weldon 

Consider creation of additional 
polling district(s) to 
accommodate increased 
electorate from next phases of 
Weldon Park development. 

Beanfield Community 
Centre Corby West CWA Corby West 

Beanfield Community 
Centre Corby West CWB Corby West 

Beanfield Community 
Centre Corby West CWC Corby West 

Danesholme 
Communicare Centre Corby West CWD Corby West 

Woodnewton A 
Learning Community Corby West CWE Corby West 

Arran Way Community 
Centre Corby West CWF Corby West 

1 response suggested retaining 
Beanfield Community Centre 
as a polling station.  1 response 
suggested a move away from 
using Studfall Junior Academy.  
Polling districts CWA, CWC, 
CWD, CWG and CWH do not 
currently have a polling station 
within the polling district area.  
Consider future re-allocation of 
electors within polling districts 
to St Ninians. Ensure electors 
are allocated to a polling 

Page 17

Appendix 



APPENDIX A 

 

Arran Way Community 
Centre Corby West 

CWG 
Corby West 

Studfall Junior Academy Corby West 

CWH 

Corby West 

station within the polling 
district or reduce the number 
of electors attending a polling 
station that is outside the 
polling district. 
 

Denford Village Hall Irthlingborough IBA Denford 
No changes required 

Great Addington 
Memorial Hall Irthlingborough IBB Great 

Addington 
No changes required 

College Street Centre Irthlingborough IBC Irthlingborough 
John Pyel 

No changes required – 
although polling place is 
outside of the polling district. 
 

The Albert Underwood 
Room Irthlingborough IBD Irthlingborough 

Waterloo 
No changes required 

Crow Hill Community 
Centre Irthlingborough IBE Irthlingborough 

Waterloo 
No changes required 

The Bell Inn Irthlingborough IBF Little 
Addington 

No changes required 

Ringstead Village Hall Irthlingborough IBG Ringstead 
No changes required 

Woodford Village Hall Irthlingborough IBH Woodford 
No changes required 

Beanfield Community 
Centre Kingswood KIA Corby 

Kingswood 

Autumn Centre Kingswood KIB Corby 
Kingswood 

Hazelwood 
Neighbourhood Centre Kingswood KIC Corby 

Kingswood 
Kingswood 
Neighbourhood Centre Kingswood KID Corby 

Kingswood 
Kingswood 
Neighbourhood Centre Kingswood KIE Corby 

Kingswood 
Oakley Vale Community 
Centre Kingswood KIF Corby 

Kingswood 

Brooke Weston 
Academy Kingswood KIG Corby 

Kingswood 

Polling districts KIA, KIE, KIF 
and KIG do not currently have 
a polling station within the 
polling district area.    Consider 
future re-allocation of electors 
within polling districts to 
ensure electors are allocated 
to a polling station within the 
polling district or reduce the 
number of electors attending a 
polling station that is outside 
the polling district. Consider 
transferring some electors to 
the Hazelwood Neighbourhood 
Centre. 
 

United Reformed 
Church Lloyds LLA Corby Lloyds 

United Reformed 
Church Lloyds LLB Corby Lloyds 

United Reformed 
Church Lloyds LLC Corby Lloyds 

Stephenson Way 
Community Centre Lloyds LLD Corby Lloyds 

St Columba Church Hall Lloyds LLE Corby Lloyds 

1 respondent suggested a 
move away from the United 
Reformed Church but did not 
suggest an alternative venue. 
The venue has been used 
successfully for a number of 
years and in the absence of a 
suitable alternative it is 
suggested that the venue is 
retained as a polling station 
going forwards. 

Page 18



APPENDIX A 

 

St Andrew’s Church of 
Scotland Lloyds LLF Corby Lloyds 

Studfall Junior Academy Lloyds LLG Corby Lloyds 

Ennerdale Community 
Centre Lloyds LLH Corby Lloyds 

Polling districts LLA and LLC, do 
not currently have a polling 
station within the polling 
district area.  Consider future 
re-allocation of electors within 
polling districts to ensure 
electors are allocated to a 
polling station within the 
polling district or reduce the 
number of electors attending a 
polling station that is outside 
the polling district. 
 

Danesholme 
Communicare Centre Oakley OAA Corby Oakley 

No changes required 

Oakley Vale Community 
Centre Oakley OAB Corby Oakley 

No changes required 

Brooke Weston 
Academy Oakley OAC Corby Oakley 

No changes required 

Great Oakley Village 
Institute Oakley OAD Corby Oakley 

No changes required 

Kings Cliffe Village Hall Oundle OUA Apethorpe 

2 respondents commented on 
the lack of accessibility at the 
village hall for disabled 
electors.  The situation of the 
village hall on a slope and 
limited parking being 
contributing factors. 
Investigate the suitability of 
Kings Cliffe Active as an 
alternative venue bearing in 
mind that Kings Cliffe Village 
Hall also currently serves 
electors in Blatherwycke, 
Bulwick and Kings Cliffe itself 
and there are limited 
alternative options. 

Benefield Village Hall Oundle OUB Benefield 
No changes required 

Kings Cliffe Village Hall Oundle OUC Blatherwycke 

Kings Cliffe Village Hall Oundle OUD Bulwick 

2 respondents commented on 
the lack of accessibility at the 
village hall for disabled 
electors.  The situation of the 
village hall on a slope and 
limited parking being 
contributing factors. 
Investigate the suitability of 
Kings Cliffe Active as an 
alternative venue bearing in 
mind that Kings Cliffe Village 
Hall also currently serves 
electors in Blatherwycke, 
Bulwick and Kings Cliffe itself 

Page 19



APPENDIX A 

 

and there are limited 
alternative options. Kings Cliffe 
Active has been used before, 
but electors requested to use 
Kings Cliffe Village Hall 

Collyweston Village Hall Oundle OUE Collyweston 
No changes required 

Deene Village Hall Oundle OUF Deene & 
Deenethorpe 

No changes required at 
present, but it is 
recommended that the 
allocation of electors be closely 
monitored. The impact of an 
increase in electorate in the 
parish of Deene be kept under 
review and an additional 
polling district be created if 
necessary. 

Duddington Village Hall Oundle OUG Duddington 
No changes required 

Easton-on-the-Hill 
Village Hall Oundle OUH Easton-on-the-

Hill 
No changes required 

Duddington Village Hall Oundle OUI Fineshade 
No changes required 

Woodnewton Village 
Hall Oundle OUJ Fotheringhay 

Consider allocating voters in 
Fotheringhay to their local 
village hall as this is within the 
polling district and has been 
used successfully at previous 
elections.  

Glapthorn Village Hall Oundle OUK Glapthorn 
No changes required 

Harringworth Village 
Hall Oundle OUL Harringworth 

No changes required 

Kings Cliffe Village Hall Oundle OUM Kingscliffe 

2 respondents commented on 
the lack of accessibility at the 
village hall for disabled 
electors.  The situation of the 
village hall on a slope and 
limited parking being 
contributing factors. 
Investigate the suitability of 
Kings Cliffe Active as an 
alternative venue bearing in 
mind that Kings Cliffe Village 
Hall also currently serves 
electors in Blatherwycke, 
Bulwick and Kings Cliffe itself 
and there are limited 
alternative options. Kings Cliffe 
Active has been used before, 
but electors requested to use 
Kings Cliffe Village Hall 

Page 20



APPENDIX A 

 

Laxton Village Hall Oundle OUN Laxton 
No changes required 

Nassington Village Hall Oundle OUO Nassington 
No changes required 

Fletton House Oundle OUP Oundle 

1 respondent supported 
retaining the venue as a polling 
station. 
Reconsider the allocation of 
electors to the two polling 
places in Oundle to ensure the 
polling districts reflect 
community identity and the 
convenience of voters. 

Joan Strong Centre Oundle OUQ Oundle 

1 respondent commented that 
the current allocation of 
electors to the two polling 
stations in Oundle could be 
improved.  Reconsider the 
allocation of electors to the 
two polling places in Oundle to 
ensure the polling districts 
reflect community identity and 
the convenience of voters. 
Other venues have previously 
been considered but their 
accessibility is limited. 

Woodnewton Village 
Hall Oundle OUR Southwick 

Consider allocating voters in 
Southwick to their local village 
hall as this is within the polling 
district and has been used 
successfully at previous 
elections. Note that mobile 
signal can be unreliable in this 
area. 

Duddington Village Hall Oundle OUS Wakerley 
No changes required 

Woodnewton Village 
Hall Oundle OUT Woodnewton 

No changes required 

Nassington Village Hall Oundle OUV Yarwell 

Consider allocating voters in 
Yarwell to their local village 
hall as this is within the polling 
district and has been used 
successfully at previous 
elections 

Hargrave Village Hall Raunds RAA Hargrave 
No changes required 

Saxon Hall Raunds RAB Raunds Saxon 
No changes required 

The Large Hall Raunds RAC Raunds 
Windmill 

No changes required 

Stanwick Raunds RAD Stanwick 
No changes required 

Page 21



APPENDIX A 

 

Aldwincle Village Hall Thrapston THA Aldwincle 
No changes required 

The Chequered Skipper Thrapston THB Ashton 
Investigate the feasibility of 
allocating voters to Polebrook 
Village Hall 

Barnwell Village Hall Thrapston THC Barnwell 
No changes required 

Brigstock Village Hall Thrapston THD Brigstock 
No changes required 

Mandate House Thrapston THE Clopton 
Investigate the feasibility of 
allocating voters to Titchmarsh 
Village Hall 

Tansor Village Hall Thrapston THF Cotterstock 

Consider allocating voters in 
Cotterstock to their local 
village hall as this is within the 
polling district and has been 
used successfully at previous 
elections 

Thurning Village Hall Thrapston THG Hemington 

Consider allocating voters in 
Hemington to their local village 
hall as this is within the polling 
district and has been used 
successfully at previous 
elections 

Islip Village Hall Thrapston THH Islip 
No changes required 

Aldwincle Village Hall Thrapston THI Lilford-Cum-
Wigsthorpe 

No changes required 

Germain Rooms Thrapston THJ Lowick 
No changes required 

Thurning Village Hall Thrapston THK Luddington 
No changes required 

Lutton Village Hall Thrapston THL Lutton 
No changes required 

Wadenhoe Recreational 
Hall Thrapston THM Pilton 

No changes required 

The Chequered Skipper Thrapston THN Polebrook 

Consider allocating voters in 
Polebrook to their local village 
hall as this is within the polling 
district and has been used 
successfully at previous 
elections 

Germain Rooms Thrapston THO Slipton 
No changes required 

Wadenhoe Recreational 
Hall Thrapston THP Stoke Doyle 

No changes required 

Sudborough Village Hall Thrapston THQ 
 Sudborough 

No changes required 

Tansor Village Hall Thrapston THR Tansor 
No changes required 

Page 22



APPENDIX A 

 

Aldwincle Village Hall Thrapston THS Thorpe 
Achurch 

No changes required 

Thrapston Baptist 
Church Thrapston THT Thrapston 

No changes required 

The Thrapston Plaza Thrapston THU Thrapston 
No changes required 

Thurning Village Hall Thrapston THV Thurning 
No changes required 

Mandate House Thrapston THW Titchmarsh 

Consider allocating voters in 
Titchmarsh to their local village 
hall as this is within the polling 
district and has been used 
successfully at previous 
elections 

MacQueen House Thrapston THX Twywell 
No changes required 

Wadenhoe Recreational 
Hall Thrapston THY Wadenhoe 

No changes required 

Warmington Village Hall Thrapston THZ Warmington 
No changes required 

  
  

Page 23



APPENDIX A 

 

POLLING DISTRICT AND POLLING PLACE REVIEW 2023 

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE ACTING RETURNING OFFICER 

KETTERING CONSTITUENCY 

  

 Ward Parish/Parish 
Ward 

Polling 
District 

AROs Recommendations 

Broughton Baptist 
Chapel Rooms 

Burton & 
Broughton Broughton BBA 

No changes required 

BBB 
No changes required Burton Latimer 

Community Centre Burton & 
Broughton 

Burton 
Latimer 

BBC 
No changes required 

BBD 
No changes required The Harold Mason 

Centre Burton & 
Broughton 

Burton 
Latimer 

BBE 
No changes required 

Pytchley Village Hall Burton & 
Broughton Pytchley BBF 

No changes required 

Burton & 
Broughton 

Barton 
Seagrave BBG 

No changes required 

WSA 
No changes required 

Barton Seagrave 
Village Hall 

Wicksteed Barton 
Seagrave 

WSB 
No changes required 

North Park Pavilion 
Clover Hill Kettering All 

Saints No 1 CHA 
No changes required 

St Andrews Church 
Hall Clover Hill Kettering All 

Saints No 2 CHB 
No changes required 

Kettering Park Infant 
Academy Clover Hill Kettering All 

Saints No 3 CHC 
No changes required 

Kettering All 
Saints No 4 CHD 

No changes required Kettering Park Junior 
Academy 

Clover Hill 
Kettering All 
Saints No 5 

CHE 
No changes required 

Brambleside 
No 1 CHF 

No changes required Brambleside Primary 
School 

Clover Hill 
Brambleside 
No 2 CHG 

No changes required 

Ashley Village Hall 
Desborough Ashley DEA 

No changes required 

Brampton 
Ash DEB 

No changes required Dingley Village Hall 

Desborough 
Dingley DEH 

No changes required 

Braybrooke Village 
Hall Desborough Braybrooke DEC 

No changes required 

Page 24



APPENDIX A 

 

Loatlands Primary 
School 

Desborough Desborough 
Loatlands DED 

Continue to seek an alternative 
venue to using Loatlands Primary 
School.  If available consider using 
the Desborough Town Football 
Club.  This venue has been used 
successfully at previous elections.  
Also investigate the feasibility of 
premises suggested during the 
consultation by one respondent, 
namely the Desborough Heritage 
Centre and/or the Desborough Hub 

Desborough Leisure 
Centre Desborough Desborough 

Loatalnds DEE 
No changes required 

Desborough 
St Giles DEF 

No changes required St Giles Church 
Community Centre 

Desborough 
Desborough 
St Giles DEG 

No changes required 

Stoke Albany Village 
Hall Desborough Stoke Albany DEI 

No changes required 

Sutton 
Bassett DEJ 

No changes required St Mary the Virgin 
Church 

Desborough 
Weston By 
Welland DEK 

No changes required 

Wilbarston Village Hall 
Desborough Wilbarston DEL 

No changes required 

ISA 
St Botolphs Church 
House 

Ise Barton 
Seagrave 

ISB 

Consider future re-allocation of 
electors within polling districts to 
ensure electors are allocated to a 
polling station  

Cranford Village Hall 
Ise Cranford ISC 

No changes required 

Geddington ISD 
Geddington Village 
Hall 

Ise 
Newton ISJ 

No changes required 

Little Oakley Village 
Hall Ise Little Oakley ISI 

No changes required 

Grafton Underwood 
Village Hall Ise Grafton 

Underwood ISE 
No changes required 

Ise Lodge Community 
Centre 

Ise Kettering Ise 
Lodge No 1 ISF 

Consider future re-allocation of 
electors within polling districts to 
ensure electors are allocated to a 
polling station within the polling 
district which reflects community 
identity and convenience for 
voters. 

Kettering Ise 
Lodge No 2 ISG 

Church of Christ the 
King 

Ise 
Kettering Ise 
Lodge No 3 ISH 

Consider future re-allocation of 
electors within polling district to 
ensure better reflection of 

Page 25



APPENDIX A 

 

community identity and 
convenience for voters. 
As a temporary measure, return to 
using Millbrook Infants School until 
Church of Christ the King becomes 
available again.  Also consider the 
temporary use of Hayfield Cross 
Primary School  until new 
community facilities planned as 
part of the Hanwood Park 
development become available. 

Warkton Village Hall 
Ise Warkton ISK 

No changes required 

Weekley Village Hall 
Ise Weekley ISL 

No changes required 

Melton Community 
Centre Northall Kettering 

Northfield NOA 
No changes required 

St Thomas More 
Catholic Primary 
School 

Northall Kettering St 
Peters No 1 NOB 

No changes required 

Hall Meadow Primary 
School 

Northall Kettering St 
Peters No 2 NOC 

5 respondents commented on the 
use of Hall Meadow Primary School 
and suggested a move away from 
using the school.  The alternative 
options suggested have previously 
been investigated and found not to 
be viable.  In the absence of a 
suitable viable alternative, it is 
recommended that Hall Meadow 
Primary School remains the polling 
place for voters in this polling 
district. 

St Mary CEVA Primary 
Academy Northall 

Kettering 
William 
Knibb No 1 

NOD 
No changes required 

William Knibb Centre 
Northall 

Kettering 
William 
Knibb No 2 

NOE 
No changes required 

United Reformed 
Church Rooms Northall 

Kettering 
William 
Knibb No 3 

NOF 
No changes required 

Parish Church Rooms 
Northall 

Kettering 
William 
Knibb No 4 

NOG 
No changes required 

Glendon RMA 

Pipewell 
RMG 

 
 

Rushton Village Hall Rothwell & 
Mawsley 

Rushton 
RMJ 

No changes required 

Page 26



APPENDIX A 

 

Great Cransley Village 
Hall 

Rothwell & 
Mawsley 

Great 
Cransley RMB 

No changes required 
 

Harrington Village Hall Rothwell & 
Mawsley Harrington RMC 

No changes required 

Loddington RMD 
No changes required Loddington Village 

Hall Rothwell & 
Mawsley 

Orton RMF 
 

The Centre at 
Mawsley 

Rothwell & 
Mawsley Mawsley RME 

No changes required 

The School Rooms, 
United Reformed 
Church Rothwell & 

Mawsley 
Rothwell 
Tresham RMH 

An alternative venue is required.  
Consider using the Methodist 
Church, alternatively a return to 
using Rothwell Victoria Infants 
School may be required 

Rothwell Community 
Centre 

Rothwell & 
Mawsley 

Rothwell 
Trinity RMI 

No changes required 

Thorpe Malsor Village 
Hall 

Rothwell & 
Mawsley 

Thorpe 
Malsor RMK 

No changes required 

Carey Baptist Church 
Windmill Kettering All 

Saints No 6 WMA 
No changes required 

St Johns Church Hall 
Windmill 

Kettering 
Avondale 
Grange No 1 

WMB 
No changes required 

Kettering 
Avondale 
Grange No 2 

WMC 
Crescents Community 
Centre 

Windmill 
Kettering 
Avondale 
Grange No 3 WMD 

No changes required 

Kettering Science 
Academy Windmill 

Kettering 
Pipers Hill No 
1 

WME 
No changes required 

Tresham College 

Windmill 
Kettering 
Pipers Hill No 
2 

WMF 

Review the feasibility of using the 
function room at the Kettering 
Rugby Club.  The room is located 
on the 1st floor but is accessible via 
a lift 

The Corn Market Hall 
Windmill 

Kettering 
Pipers Hill no 
3 

WMG 
No changes required 

St Michaels Church 

Wicksteed 

Kettering St 
Michael's & 
Wicksteed 
No 1 

WSC 

No changes required 

Highfield Barnes 
Community Centre Wicksteed 

Kettering St 
Michael's & 
Wicksteed 
No 2 

WSD 

No changes required 

Counties Community 
Centre Wicksteed Kettering St 

Michael's & WSE 
No changes required 

Page 27



APPENDIX A 

 

Wicksteed 
No 3 

No polling station 
currently allocated  Wicksteed Kettering Ise 

Lodge No 4 WSF 

Consider the feasibility of 
allocating electors to either the Ise 
Lodge Community Centre or 
Hayfield Cross Primary School. 

 

  

Page 28



APPENDIX A 

 

 

POLLING DISTRICT AND PLACE REVIEW  

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE ACTING RETURNING OFFICER 

WELLINGBOROUGH CONSTITUENCY 

 

Polling Place Ward Parish/Parish 
Ward 

Polling 
District 

AROs Recommendations 

St Marks Church 
Hall 

Brickhill & 
Queensway Brickhill BQA 

No changes required 

Weavers Leisure 
Centre 

Brickhill & 
Queensway Brickhill BQB 

No changes required 

St Marks Church 
Hall 

Brickhill & 
Queensway Brickhill BQC 

No changes required 

Wellingborough 
Bowling Club 

Brickhill & 
Queensway Hatton BQD 

No changes required 

Olympic Primary 
School 

Brickhill & 
Queensway Queensway BQE 

No changes required 

Glamis Hall Brickhill & 
Queensway Queensway BQF 

No changes required 

Ruskin Academy 
Community Room 

Brickhill & 
Queensway Queensway BQG 

No changes required 

Scout Hut at Dale 
End 

Brickhill & 
Queensway Swanspool BQH 

1 respondent commented on the 
accessibility of the venue for those with a 
disability particularly when entering the 
site from the Croyland Road entrance.  
The grassed car park area also presents 
challenges for those using a wheelchair.  
Options for alternative venues are limited 
in this area if the use of schools is to be 
avoided.  

The Tithe Barn Brickhill & 
Queensway Swanspool BQI 

No changes required 

St Andrews 
Church Hall 

Croyland & 
Swanspool Croyland CSA 

No changes required 

Travelodge 
Wellingborough 

Croyland & 
Swanspool Croyland CSB 

No changes required 

The Miller Croyland & 
Swanspool Croyland CSC 

No changes required 

Salvation Army Croyland & 
Swanspool Hatton CSD 

No changes required 

Castle Theatre Croyland & 
Swanspool Isebrook CSE 

No changes required 

The Tithe Barn Croyland & 
Swanspool Swanspool CSF 

No changes required 

Castle Theatre Croyland & 
Swanspool Swanspool CSG 

No changes required 

Page 29



APPENDIX A 

 

Wrenn School Croyland & 
Swanspool Swanspool CSH 

No changes required 

The Memorial 
Hall 

Earls 
Barton 

Great 
Doddington EBC 

No changes required 

Little Harrowden 
Village Hall 

Earls 
Barton 

Great 
Harrowden EBD 

No changes required 

Little Harrowden 
Village Hall 

Earls 
Barton Hardwick EBE 

No changes required 

Isham 
Independent 
Wesleyan Chapel 

Earls 
Barton Isham EBF 

No changes required.  Alternative venues 
are available in the village should the 
Chapel become unavailable. 

Little Harrowden 
Village Hall 

Earls 
Barton 

Little 
Harrowden EBG 

No changes required 

Orlingbury Village 
Hall 

Earls 
Barton Orlingbury EBI 

No changes required 

The Memorial 
Hall, Gt 
Doddington 

Earls 
Barton 

Wellingborough 
Croyland EBK 

No changes required 

No polling station 
currently 
allocated 

Earls 
Barton 

Wellingborough 
Redwell EBL 

Continue to seek a suitable venue to be 
used as a polling station in this polling 
district.  Monitor development within the 
polling district and regularly review 
provision of community facilities as part of 
ongoing housing development in this area. 

Portacabin in car 
park at Ock 'n' 
Dough 

Earls 
Barton 

Wellingborough 
Rixon EBM 

Continue to seek an alternative option to 
using a portacabin.  Mobile units are 
considered to be less accessible than 
permanent venues. 

Wilby C of E 
Primary School 

Earls 
Barton Wilby EBN 

An alternative venue may be required if 
the school closes.  Keep under regular 
review. 

Finedon 
Independent 
Wesleyan Chapel 

Finedon Finedon FIA 

No changes required, although the 
Community Centre would be a suitable 
alternative option.  Parking at the 
community centre is limited to a small 
number of spaces. 

Castle Theatre Finedon Wellingborough 
Isebrook No 2 FIB 

Consider the temporary use of Stanton 
Cross Primary School until other suitable 
community facilities become available as 
part of the largescale development project 
being undertaken in this area. 

Hemmingwell 
Skills Centre Finedon Wellingborough 

Rixon No 2 FIC 
No changes required 

Hemmingwell 
Skills Centre Finedon Wellingborough 

Rixon No 3 FID 
No changes required 

Hindu 
Community 
Centre 

Finedon Wellingborough 
Victoria No 1 FIE 

Consider the temporary use of Stanton 
Cross Primary School until other suitable 
community facilities become available as 
part of the largescale development project 
being undertaken in this area. 

Page 30



APPENDIX A 

 

Hindu 
Community 
Centre 

Finedon Wellingborough 
Victoria No 2 FIF 

1 respondent commented on the 
accessibility of the Hindu Community 
Centre, particularly in terms of parking 
and suggested use of the Waendel Leisure 
Centre as an alternative.  The Waendel 
Leisure Centre should be explored as an 
alternative option for voters in the 
Finedon Ward.    

Chelveston 
Village Hall 

Higham 
Ferrers 

Chelveston-
cum-caldecott HFA 

No changes required 

The Community 
Hall (Duchy Suite) 

Higham 
Ferrers 

Higham Ferrers 
Chichele HFB 

No changes required 

Higham Ferrers 
Working Mens 
Club 

Higham 
Ferrers 

Higham Ferrers 
Lancaster No. 1 HFC 

No changes required 

Hensman Hall Higham 
Ferrers 

High Ferrers 
Lancaster No. 2 HFD 

No changes required 

Rushden 
Historical 
Transport Society 

Higham 
Ferrers 

Rushden 
Spencer North HFE 

No changes required 

Wellingborough 
Bowls Club 

Hatton 
Park 

Wellingborough 
Hatton No 3 HPA 

No changes required 

Sir Christopher 
Hatton Academy 

Hatton 
Park 

Wellingborough 
Hatton No 4 HPB 

No changes required 

Redwell Leisure 
Centre 

Hatton 
Park 

Wellingborough 
Redwell No 2 HPC 

No changes required 

Vicarage Farm 
Community 
Centre 

Hatton 
Park 

Wellingborough 
Redwell No 3 HPD 

No changes required 

Portacabin in car 
park at Ock 'n' 
Dough 

Hatton 
Park 

Wellingborough 
Rixon No 4 HPE 

Continue to seek a more accessible venue 
for voters in this area.  The use of 
portacabins presents a number of 
challenges for those with disabilities and a 
more permanent venue would be 
desirable. 

The Hope Church Hatton 
Park 

Wellingborough 
Rixon No 5 HPF 

Hemmingwell 
Skills Centre 

Hatton 
Park 

Wellingborough 
Rixon No 6 HPG 

1 respondent questioned whether The 
Hope Church and Hemmingwell Skills 
Centre were both required.  Reconsider 
the current allocation of electors to the 
polling stations in this area of 
Wellingborough to ensure the polling 
districts reflect community identity and 
the convenience of voters. 
 

St Marys Church 
Hall Irchester Bozeat ICA 

No changes required 

St Marys Church 
Hall Irchester Easton Maudit ICB 

No changes required 

Grendon Village 
Hall Irchester Grendon ICC 

No changes required 

Page 31



APPENDIX A 

 

Irchester Village 
Hall Irchester Irchester ICD 

No changes required 

Irchester Village 
Hall Irchester Little Irchester ICE 

No changes required 

Wollaston Village 
Hall Irchester Strixton ICF 

No changes required 

Wollaston Village 
Hall Irchester Wollaston ICG 

No changes required 

St Peter's Church 
Hall 

Rushden 
Pemberton 
West 

Rushden 
Hayden Central 
No. 1 

RPA 

Highfield 
Community 
Baptist Church 

Rushden 
Pemberton 
West 

Rushden 
Pemberton No. 
1 

RPB 

White Friars 
Church (The 
Bridge) 

Rushden 
Pemberton 
West 

Rushden 
Pemberton No. 
2  

RPC 

White Friars 
Church (The 
Bridge) 

Rushden 
Pemberton 
West 

Rushden 
Pemberton No 3 RPD 

Full Gospel 
Church 

Rushden 
Pemberton 
West 

Rushden 
Sartoris West RPE 

Highfield 
Community 
Baptist Church 

Rushden 
Pemberton 
West 

Rushden South 
No 1 RPF 

Highfield 
Community 
Baptist Church 

Rushden 
Pemberton 
West 

Rushden South 
No 2 RPG 

1 respondent suggested that the current 
allocation of electors to the polling station 
in this area of Rushden could be improved.  
Reconsider the allocation of electors to 
the polling places in this ward to ensure 
the polling districts reflect community 
identity and the convenience of voters. 
 

Newton 
Bromswold 
Memorial Hall 

Rushden 
South 

Newton 
Bromswold RSA 

No changes required 

Heritage Chapel 
& Halls 

Rushden 
South 

Rushden Bates 
No. 1 RSB 

Heritage Chapel 
& Halls 

Rushden 
South 

Rushden Bates 
No 2 RSC 

Rushden & 
Higham RFC 

Rushden 
South 

Rushden Bates 
No 3 RSD 

Independent 
Wesleyan Church 

Rushden 
South 

Rushden 
Hayden No. 3 RSE 

Independent 
Wesleyan Church 

Rushden 
South 

Rushden 
Haydon No 1 RSF 

The John White 
Golf Club 

Rushden 
South 

Rushden 
Hayden No. 2  RSG 

Rushden & 
Higham RFC 

Rushden 
South 

Rushden 
Sartoris East No. 
1 

RSH 

Rushden & 
Higham RFC 

Rushden 
South 

Rushden 
Sartoris East No. 
2 

RSI 

1 respondent suggested that the current 
allocation of electors to the polling 
stations in Rushden South Ward could be 
improved.  Reconsider the allocation of 
electors to the polling places in this ward 
to ensure the polling districts reflect 
community identity and the convenience 
of voters. 

Page 32



APPENDIX A 

 

  
 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Table of Polling Districts and Future Constituency Areas - November 2023

Polling
District

Parish Parish Ward NNc Ward Ward Current Constituency BCE Final Recommendations -
Proposed constituency

BBA Broughton Burton & Broughton Kettering Kettering
BBB Burton Latimer Burton & Broughton Kettering Kettering
BBC Burton Latimer Burton & Broughton Kettering Kettering
BBD Burton Latimer Burton & Broughton Kettering Kettering
BBE Burton Latimer Burton & Broughton Kettering Kettering
BBF Pytchley Burton & Broughton Kettering Kettering
BBG Barton Seagrave Burton & Broughton Kettering Kettering
BQA Wellingborough Brickhill Brickhill & Queensway Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
BQB Wellingborough Brickhill Brickhill & Queensway Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
BQC Wellingborough Brickhill Brickhill & Queensway Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
BQD Wellingborough Hatton Brickhill & Queensway Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
BQE Wellingborough Queensway Brickhill & Queensway Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
BQF Wellingborough Queensway Brickhill & Queensway Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
BQG Wellingborough Queensway Brickhill & Queensway Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
BQH Wellingborough Swanspool Brickhill & Queensway Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
BQI Wellingborough Swanspool Brickhill & Queensway Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
CHA Kettering All Saints Clover Hill Kettering Kettering
CHB Kettering All Saints Clover Hill Kettering Kettering
CHC Kettering All Saints Clover Hill Kettering Kettering
CHD Kettering All Saints Clover Hill Kettering Kettering
CHE Kettering All Saints Clover Hill Kettering Kettering
CHF Kettering Brambleside Clover Hill Kettering Kettering
CHG Kettering Brambleside Clover Hill Kettering Kettering
CRA Corby Lloyds Corby Rural Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
CRB Cottingham Corby Rural Corby Kettering
CRC East Carlton Corby Rural Corby Kettering
CRD Gretton Corby Rural Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
CRE Little Stanion Corby Rural Corby Kettering
CRF Middleton Corby Rural Corby Kettering
CRG Middleton Corby Rural Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
CRH Rockingham Corby Rural Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
CRI Stanion Corby Rural Corby Kettering
CRJ Weldon Corby Rural Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
CRK Weldon Corby Rural Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
CSA Wellingborough Croyland Croyland & Swanspool Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
CSB Wellingborough Croyland Croyland & Swanspool Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
CSC Wellingborough Croyland Croyland & Swanspool Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
CSD Wellingborough Hatton Croyland & Swanspool Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
CSE Wellingborough Isebrook Croyland & Swanspool Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
CSF Wellingborough Swanspool Croyland & Swanspool Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
CSG Wellingborough Swanspool Croyland & Swanspool Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
CSH Wellingborough Swanspool Croyland & Swanspool Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
CWA Corby Corby West Corby West Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
CWB Corby Corby West Corby West Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
CWC Corby Corby West Corby West Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
CWD Corby Corby West Corby West Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
CWE Corby Corby West Corby West Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
CWF Corby Corby West Corby West Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
CWG Corby Corby West Corby West Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
CWH Corby Corby West Corby West Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
DEA Ashley Desborough Kettering Kettering
DEB Brampton Ash Desborough Kettering Kettering
DEC Braybrooke Desborough Kettering Kettering
DED Desborough Loatland Desborough Kettering Kettering
DEE Desborough Loatland Desborough Kettering Kettering

P
age 35

A
ppendix 



DEF Desborough St Giles Desborough Kettering Kettering
DEG Desborough St Giles Desborough Kettering Kettering
DEH Dingley Desborough Kettering Kettering
DEI Stoke Albany Desborough Kettering Kettering
DEJ Sutton Bassett Desborough Kettering Kettering
DEK Weston by Welland Desborough Kettering Kettering
DEL Wilbarston Desborough Kettering Kettering
EBA Earls Barton Earls Barton Daventry Daventry
EBB Ecton Earls Barton Daventry Daventry
EBC Great Doddington Earls Barton Wellingborough Daventry
EBD Great Harrowden Earls Barton Wellingborough Daventry
EBE Hardwick Earls Barton Wellingborough Daventry
EBF Isham Earls Barton Wellingborough Daventry
EBG Little Harrowden Earls Barton Wellingborough Daventry
EBH Mears Ashby Earls Barton Daventry Daventry
EBI Orlingbury Earls Barton Wellingborough Daventry
EBJ Sywell Earls Barton Daventry Daventry
EBK Wellingborough Croyland Earls Barton Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
EBL Wellingborough Redwell Earls Barton Wellingborough Daventry
EBM Wellingborough Rixon Earls Barton Wellingborough Daventry
EBN Wilby Earls Barton Wellingborough Daventry
FIA Finedon Finedon Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
FIB Wellingborough Isebrook Finedon Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
FIC Wellingborough Rixon Finedon Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
FID Wellingborough Rixon Finedon Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
FIE Wellingborough Victoria Finedon Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
FIF Wellingborough Victoria Finedon Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden

HFA
Chelveston-cum-
Caldecott

Higham Ferrers Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden

HFB Higham Ferrers Chichele Higham Ferrers Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
HFC Higham Ferrers Lancaster Higham Ferrers Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
HFD Higham Ferrers Lancaster Higham Ferrers Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
HFE Rushden Spencer North Higham Ferrers Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
HPA Wellingborough Hatton Hatton Park Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
HPB Wellingborough Hatton Hatton Park Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
HPC Wellingborough Redwell Hatton Park Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
HPD Wellingborough Redwell Hatton Park Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
HPE Wellingborough Rixon Hatton Park Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
HPF Wellingborough Rixon Hatton Park Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
HPG Wellingborough Rixon Hatton Park Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
IBA Denford Irthlingborough Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
IBB Great Addington Irthlingborough Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
IBC Irthlingborough Irthlingborough John Pyel Irthlingborough Corby Wellingborough & Rushden
IBD Irthlingborough Irthlingborough Waterloo Irthlingborough Corby Wellingborough & Rushden
IBE Irthlingborough Irthlingborough Waterloo Irthlingborough Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
IBF Little Addington Irthlingborough Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
IBG Ringstead Irthlingborough Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
IBH Woodford Irthlingborough Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
ICA Bozeat Irchester Wellingborough South Northamptonshire
ICB Easton Maudit Irchester Wellingborough South Northamptonshire
ICC Grendon Irchester Wellingborough South Northamptonshire
ICD Irchester Irchester Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
ICE Little Irchester Irchester Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
ICF Strixton Irchester Wellingborough South Northamptonshire
ICG Wollaston Irchester Wellingborough South Northamptonshire

P
age 36



ISA Barton Seagrave Ise Kettering Kettering
ISB Barton Seagrave Ise Kettering Kettering
ISC Cranford Ise Kettering Kettering
ISD Geddington Ise Kettering Kettering
ISE Grafton Underwood Ise Kettering Kettering
ISF Kettering Ise Kettering Kettering
ISG Kettering Ise Kettering Kettering
ISH Kettering Ise Kettering Kettering
ISI Little Oakley Ise Kettering Kettering
ISJ Newton Ise Kettering Kettering
ISK Warkton Ise Kettering Kettering
ISL Weekley Ise Kettering Kettering
KIA Corby Kingswood Kingswood Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
KIB Corby Kingswood Kingswood Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
KIC Corby Kingswood Kingswood Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
KID Corby Kingswood Kingswood Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
KIE Corby Kingswood Kingswood Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
KIF Corby Kingswood Kingswood Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
KIG Corby Kingswood Kingswood Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
LLA Corby Lloyds Lloyds Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
LLB Corby Lloyds Lloyds Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
LLC Corby Lloyds Lloyds Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
LLD Corby Lloyds Lloyds Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
LLE Corby Lloyds Lloyds Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
LLF Corby Lloyds Lloyds Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
LLG Corby Lloyds Lloyds Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
LLH Corby Lloyds Lloyds Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
NOA Kettering Northfield Northall Kettering Kettering
NOB Kettering St Peters Northall Kettering Kettering
NOC Kettering St Peters Northall Kettering Kettering
NOD Kettering William Knibb Northall Kettering Kettering
NOE Kettering William Knibb Northall Kettering Kettering
NOF Kettering William Knibb Northall Kettering Kettering
NOG Kettering William Knibb Northall Kettering Kettering
OAA Corby Oakley Oakley Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OAB Corby Oakley Oakley Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OAC Corby Oakley Oakley Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OAD Corby Oakley Oakley Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUA Apethorpe Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUB Benefield Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUC Blatherwycke Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUD Bulwick Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUE Collyweston Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUF Deene & Deenethorpe Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUG Duddington Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUH Easton -on-the-Hill Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUI Fineshade Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUJ Fotheringhay Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUK Glapthorn Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUL Harringworth Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUM Kingscliffe Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUN Laxton Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUO Nassington Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUP Oundle Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUQ Oundle Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUR Southwick Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUS Wakerley Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUT Woodnewton Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
OUU Yarwell Oundle Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
RAA Hargrave Raunds Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire

P
age 37



RAB Raunds Saxon Raunds Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
RAC Raunds Windmill Raunds Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
RAD Stanwick Raunds Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
RMA Glendon Rothwell & Mawsley Kettering Kettering
RMB Great Cransley Rothwell & Mawsley Kettering Kettering
RMC Harrington Rothwell & Mawsley Kettering Kettering
RMD Loddington Rothwell & Mawsley Kettering Kettering
RME Mawsley Rothwell & Mawsley Kettering Kettering
RMF Orton Rothwell & Mawsley Kettering Kettering
RMG Pipewell Rothwell & Mawsley Kettering Kettering
RMH Rothwell Tresham Ward Rothwell & Mawsley Kettering Kettering
RMI Rothwell Trinity Ward Rothwell & Mawsley Kettering Kettering
RMJ Rushton Rothwell & Mawsley Kettering Kettering
RMK Thorpe Malsor Rothwell & Mawsley Kettering Kettering
RPA Rushden Hayden Central Rushden Pemberton West Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
RPB Rushden Pemberton Rushden Pemberton West Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
RPC Rushden Pemberton Rushden Pemberton West Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
RPD Rushden Pemberton Rushden Pemberton West Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
RPE Rushden Sartoris West Rushden Pemberton West Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
RPF Rushden Spencer South Rushden Pemberton West Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
RPG Rushden Spencer South Rushden Pemberton West Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
RSA Newton Bromswold Bromswold Rushden South Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
RSB Rushden Bates Rushden South Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
RSC Rushden Bates Rushden South Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
RSD Rushden Bates Rushden South Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
RSE Rushden Hayden Rushden South Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
RSF Rushden Hayden Rushden South Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
RSG Rushden Hayden Rushden South Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
RSH Rushden Sartoris East Rushden South Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
RSI Rushden Sartoris East Rushden South Wellingborough Wellingborough & Rushden
THA Aldwincle Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THB Ashton Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THC Barnwell Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THD Brigstock Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THE Clopton Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THF Cotterstock Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THG Hemington Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THH Islip Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire

THI
Lilford -Cum-
Wigsthorpe

Thrapston
Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire

THJ Lowick Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THK Luddington Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THL Lutton Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THM Pilton Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THN Polebrook Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THO Slipton Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THP Stoke Doyle Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THQ Sudborough Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THR Tansor Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THS Thorpe Achurch Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THT Thrapston Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THU Thrapston Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THV Thurning Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THW Titchmarsh Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THX Twywell Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THY Wadenhoe Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
THZ Warmington Thrapston Corby Corby and East Northamptonshire
WMA Kettering All Saints Windmill Kettering Kettering
WMB Kettering Avondale Grange Windmill Kettering Kettering
WMC Kettering Avondale Grange Windmill Kettering Kettering
WMD Kettering Avondale Grange Windmill Kettering Kettering

P
age 38



WME Kettering Pipers Hill Windmill Kettering Kettering
WMF Kettering Pipers Hill Windmill Kettering Kettering
WMG Kettering Pipers Hill Windmill Kettering Kettering
WSA Barton Seagrave Seagrave Wicksteed Kettering Kettering
WSB Barton Seagrave Seagrave Wicksteed Kettering Kettering
WSC Kettering St Michaels & Wicksteed Wicksteed Kettering Kettering
WSD Kettering St Michaels & Wicksteed Wicksteed Kettering Kettering
WSE Kettering St Michaels & Wicksteed Wicksteed Kettering Kettering
WSF Kettering Ise Lodge Wicksteed Kettering Kettering

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Approval of the minutes of the additional meeting held on 25 September 2023
	Minutes

	4 Polling District and Polling Places Review 2023 - Final Recommendations
	Democracy and Standards Committee
	Appendix A - Recommendations of the Acting Returning Officer - Final
	Appendix B - Copy of Table of Polling Districts and Future Constituency Areas - v3 Final




